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V. COMPLETING THE FRONTIER ROAD SYSTEM

~During the frontler ere in Minnesota's history;
wagon roads were>bu11t through virgin country 1in a&—'
vance of, or contemporaneouslj with, 1ts occupation
_ by white men, Wagoh roads were the'sole meens by which
- the communicatlon of a large part of the state was caré
ried on, and widespread interest was dlsplayed in de-
velopiﬁg}a system‘of‘main thoroughfares to connect
the 1ntefior towns with each other and with those on
navlgable streams. But, with the<c6m1ng of the rall-
rosd, the attitude of the people of Minnesota toward
.thelr wagon roads changed perceptibly, fqr:the rail-
roads took the place which, in‘the frontier age, tﬁe
main highWay_system had occupied. Thereafter, the
wagon roads were transferred to a positiqn of secon-
' aery importancé in‘the.communication system, They were
looked upon simply as a méans~for getting to the rall-
‘roads, and, for the most part,.tﬁey were of.local in-
“arest én;y, No definlte period can be pointed out as
the one in which this change in popular Opinion ocour-
red. When one portlon of the stste arrived at a polnt
where 1ts most pressing communication needs were sat-
18fled. byvt"-ne rallrosds, another part, still occupled -

with the'problemé of subduing the frontier,_was tryihg .
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deSperately to open wagon roads to the settlnd areas.

-

. The eagerness for railroads was characteristio of

Minnesota settlers from the beginning of the territori-

al'period. Indeed, the craze for them was 80 pronounc- -
ed‘that~one'editor was constrailned to warn his feaders
that "in our eagerness for Rallroads we are forgetting
these common avenues through which in reélity are flow~
ing our wealth. . . . This road business is a matter

of concern to us and we should not neglect 1t; and the
best time toyattend to 1t is now." 1 .Many of the early
wagon roads were 1ald out with the express idea in mind
that tﬁey might be used later as the routes for rall-
roads.. In laying out the Fort Ridgély—South Pasgs em=
igrant road, for example, every precaution was teken

10 insure the adoption of a route which would be a
feaslble one for a rellroad., The same 1ldesl was evi-
denced in Simpson's reports on the location of the‘Lake
Superior—Point'Douglas military road. The militaxry

roads, almost without exception, were destnfd tc fol-

low courses which rellroad 11nes cou]d later follow.

The idea was carried over to the selection uf routes
for roads lald out by the territorlal leglslature,

Thé route of the road from St. Paul to Kettle River, .

for example, was thought to be feasible for the con-

struction of a rallroad from St., Paul to Leke Superior,

1. Saint Peter Courler, June 36, 1857.
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In the eariyjsixties, the backers of a project to con-
struct a direct rosd from St., Clbud to Lake.Supérior
urged the éapid constrﬁction,of the road not only be-
cause 1t would facilitgte immediate communication -

' needs, but élso becaﬁse 1t wes a favorsble route for
a rellrosd. Even the frontler road system, therefore,
was influenced by the probability of futgre rallroad

construction, 2 | .

The eagerness of the farmers and buslinessmen of

Minnesota to have failroads‘isrunderstandable, fof the

businessman of the interior towns had to freight hls

merchandise over fifty or sixty, and sometlimes many
more, miles of rough roads, while the farmer had to

haul his small loads of wheat to market over equally
long distanbes.. The wholesaling centers for merchan- ]
dise and the bﬁying centers for surplus agrlcultural !
products were located at polnts where goods and producd

.could be shipped most eqsily and cheaply to or from j
the mllls or manufacturing centers. Transportation i
was important, and because costs of transportation by \

team were nigh, the steamboat a cheaper mesns, was the{
determining facter: 1n the location of 1mportant mdrkpts$
and wholesale points, The river towns, therefore, were \

the rocal points to which trade and commerce ultlmately

2. Report of Simpson 10 Abert, September 185, 1851,

in 33 Congreos, 1 session, House FExecutlve Documenta,

" no. 12, p. 11 (serial 637); Minnesota Dex rocral, July
15, 1851 September 7, 1853 post, p. 183.
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bflowed;_ It was noﬁvunhéard of, for éxamblé; for'fa}meré
' 150 miles from Winoha to haul their surplus wheat to
that important wheat market;.and businessmen -- even..
thoée of a bustling center like Mankato -- sometimes
had to freight théir goods from Winona, especlally when |
peripdé of drought restricted navigatlon on the smaller
streams. In 1861 1t was estimated that the average
dlstance of the wheat formers of Minnesota from towns
on navigabl& streams was neerly elghty miles. During ¢
‘the season of grgin buying, the congestion of grain
‘wagons at such centers was so great,.that they frequent-
ly’waited in line for two or three days before they
could be unl?adgd. The bﬁmpy, poorly constructed roads
of the frontler era restricted the slize of loads that |
& fermer cbuid haul, and the small profit that accured
to him from the sale of his wheat or other produce
was qulckly swallowed up by the excessive costs of
transportation to the market. Under such conditions, it
was lnevlitable that the wégon roeds should hsave been
overshadowed in importandé by a much mors convenlent
end less expensive railroad. 3

Thelfrontier of settlement at the end of the tér-

3, Henrietta M, Larson, The Wheet Market and the
Fermer in Minnesota, 18581900, 17-54 (New York, 1926).
In a historicel account of the village of Mapleton in
Blue Earth County, published in the Mapleton Enterprise -
~for April 24, 1891, the statement is made that when the
farmers begen to- raise wheat they "hauled 1t to the
Mississippl river, a load of it being sufficlent to buy

- a barrel of salt end a few nick-nacks.
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‘  ritorial paricd extenﬁed beyond thé Minnesota River,

up the valley of the Mississippi beyond St. Cloud, end
-northwaxd up the valley of the St. Croix 1o Sunrise City.
Yet scearcely one-third of the area of the state was
;1ncluded In the settled portilon. The narrowness of  the
margin of white occupation 1s'illustrated by the blood-
cu?dling massaererf frontief settlers by Indlans et
Spirit Lake, Iowa, which occurred during the winter of
11857, and Spirit Lake 1lies only slightly west of a line
- drawn through the midpoint of Minnesota from north to
south, In 1862 New Ulm was so much a fronﬁier town |
that its inhabltants were subjected to a furlous siege
by Indlan hostiles, while red men that same summer at-
tacked communitles such as Hutchinson, Glencoe, and
Maine Prairie near $%. Cloud, and at th; latter place
the panicnstrickén inhabltants erected a barricade for
- defense agalnst a threatened rald., At the head of Lake
Superior an isolated settlement carried on 1its communi-
-cation with the princlpal towns of Minnésota_pver a
frontier traill, The line of settlemént reached up the
Misslissippl Valley to Fort Ripley and Crow Wing, and
along the Red River trall ﬁp the Sauk Valley a few.'
straggling settlements had been'begun. Pembina in the
Red River Valley was 1solated from the rest of Minne-
sota save for a mddicum of communldation, and near the
~Junction of the Bols des Sioux and Otter Tail rivers

Fort Abercromble was bullt to protect the lend~hungry



180
" settlers who were reachlng out to grasp c;Lgib¢a sites
for homes in the valley. |

For the gettlers 1n the region beyond the line of
the frontier, the 1mmediate concern was the opening of

wagon roads, A few of them might penetrate the wilder-
ness to find new homeé, but like thelr predecessoré of
the fifties in the southeastern portion of Minnesoﬁa,
unless roads were opened they could not expect settlers
to follow them, Consequently, the advance of the fron=-
~ tier of settlement and the advance of the rapildly widen-
ing network of roads proceeded side by side, and the
frontier of settlement colncided with the borderline
beyond which there were no roads.

The 1égislatufe of 1857-58 authorized the opening
of 166 roadé,. Most of these were located withln the
settled areas of southeastern and central Minnesota, bﬁt
the opening of roads from Henderson to Lake Traverse,
from Henderson to the Nobles road at the crossing of
the Big Cottonwood River, from Madella westward to Ben-.
ton Lake, and from Blue Earth and Manksto to Jackson
represents the advance of the frontler in the southwest-
ern portion of the state. Roads from Otter Tall City
‘and St. Cloud to Breckenridge, from Breckenridge to the
mouth of the Sheyenne River, end from Minneapolis to

the wesﬁarn boundary of the ‘state by way of Yandiyohi
| mesnt the extension of the frontler westward bcyond the

Coteau des Prairies. Similar extensions of the 11nes.of



communlcation in the northern and. northeautern portlons
of Minnesota testify to the conquest of the Wilderness
in thet direction, ¢ |
The full effects of the panic of 1857 were not foit
| by the people of Minnesota until the Sprinngf 1858,
Then only aia they reallze that the depression was more
than a temporary tightenling of purse stfings, Money
almost dilsappeared from the frontier markets, and in
many communlties barter and credit money appesred, Hun-
dreds of persons lost their prbperty‘through foreclo-.
_sures of moftgages or through forced sales to liquidate}
debts, As one historian has expressed 1t, "speculators
were .forced to become farmers" in order to survive, and
' the prophecy of a contemporary observer, that Ythe beggaf
and the broker will change coats . . » wWithout eithef
losing his respectabllity" was abundantly demonstrated,
Recovefy from that financial storm was slow, end, &bout
‘the time condltlons were becomlng normai, the rebellion
of the southern states occurred. As a climax, the Sioux
Indlans in the summer of 1863 rose in revolt agéinst the
whites, and for the next two or three years the frontler
settlemsnts had not only to contend with a depressed
financlal conditlcn and the Civil Wér, but it had con-
stantly to Tear a recurrénce of the bloody Indian war

es wsll, The net result was that the frontier aedvanced

4. Soecial Laws, 1858, p. 107, 110-112, 117-118, 399,
387, o ' : - :
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slowly, 1f at all, during these years. 5

As the progress of settlement was slowed down by '

the war and unrest of the early sixtles, so the program

" of extending roads into the frontler was retarded. ‘In
"the areas ravaged by the'Indiaﬁs, hundreds of settlers
fled in panic from their homes, In that portion of the
state 1t was nécessary to reoccupy the frontier, and
that proceés consumed the greater portion of the re-
meining years of the Civil ¥War period. In areas more
remote from the Indian troubles, however, the strugglé
for the mastery of new soll proceeded as rapldly as the
decreased immlgration of those years permitied,

The improvement of communicatlon between the upper
 Mississippl River settlements sbout St, Cloud and the
gettlement at the head of Leke Superlor engrossed the

attention of the ploneers in those regiphé, The roads
1aild ocut during the territorial period slowly were made
réady for use. In 1859 citizens of Superior completed
a road leading westward to Mille Lacs at an estimated
cost of $30,000., At the same time the people in the
uppér Mississippl Valley bullt their end of the road,
and in Aoril 1860, 1t was 80 far comvleted that teoms

loaded with orovisions passed over it, 6

5. Larson, The Wheat Market and the Farmer, 18; Minne-
gota Republican (St. Anthony and minneapol;s) Octobper
30, 1857. '

6. Ante, p. 156-160; A, G. Descent to Isszac Crowe,
February 24, 1859, in the Crowe Papers, in the posses-
glon of the Jipneuota Historical Soclety; New Ers (O&UA
Replds), Jenuary 36, March 9, Anril 19, 1860. ’
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In 18684 the legislature authorized the cdnstructidn
of & dlrect road from St. Cloud to Lake Sujeridr; The

city of St. Cloud was authorized to spend up to $200 for

surveyin5 the road and a maximum of $8 , 000 toward paying'

for its construction, while Stearns and St. Louls coun-
tles each might expend $4,000 for construction purposes.
By the beginning of summer'ﬂhe road had‘been laiad oﬁt
for a distance of twenty-five miles, but\the surveyihg
of the remainder was deferred until the following year.
“This wes sufficient to give access to the rich pineries
.of the upper Rum River country, however, and bade fair
tovgivebst. Cloud merchants a monopoly of the lucrative
trade of this industry, for the lumbermen, up to this
tiﬁe, had to transport their supplles through the mud
and ruts of the Ymost execrable roads" from Anoka and»
Princeton., 7

zTha extenslon of the frontier northward during this
period waé accentuated by a'brief . but 1ntense flurry
000ﬁsioned by the discovery of gold in the country about
Vermilion Lake in the summer of 1865, For a few months
that fall there was a stampede of gold seekers to the
mining country elghty mileS'north of Duluth, The first
gold hunters had to mske thelr way to Vermilion Lake
from Duluth on foot threugh intermineble swamps, or by
. a tedious and exhausting voyage in a canoce up the S5t.

7 St Cloud Democrat, March 1o 31 1864 Speclal
- Laws, 1867, Ds’ 338»u30 o
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Louls ﬁiverov To dvaroeme the barrlerrof_sramp and for-
est, the citizens of Duluth and Superier began to raise -
funds for the construction of a wagon road In response
"to appeals for financlal ald, citizens from St Paul
St. Anthony, and even from Chicago made contrlbutions,
aﬁd by the time snow covered the ground, a roadwey had
been cleared for a distance of forty miles, During the
winter a band of miners, bound for VermillonvLake with}
equipment for extracting the gold from the quartz rock
of the mining country, completed the track, o |

.The Opening of_this road was the signal for a boom
_1n the mining country. By the time serlng came, there
were fiiteen mining oompanies in the fleld, and the wil-
..derness was transformed into a Dusy mining camp, Tnenv
the boom collapsed as suddenly s 1t had begun. An
-,attempt to revive it in the fall of 1867 was only partielm
1y successful but under the stimulus of proof that
there was gold in the Vermilion Lake ‘reglon, the legis-
lature in 1368 was persuaded to authorize “the openrng
of a road frem Duluth to Vermilioﬁ Lake which would Dbe
passsble in summer or'winter, The sum of $5,000 wa.8
anprooriated for its construction from the internal im«
provement fund, and more money, if needed, could be

drawn from the state's general revenue fund. The follow-

8. St. Paul Pioneer, November 11, 28 1865, January
28, Februsry 17, March 28 1866 Prlmmer, in Minnescta
ﬁ;stogy 16: 2%95. - _ .
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ing year'the iegislature appropriated-an‘additiénal .
~ $1,000, and this, together with the federal gp‘prépﬂa-;
tion of $1.0,000 méde thet same year, ﬁas suffiCiehﬁ to
bulld a road which was passeble the year round., By
that time, howeVer, the gold boom had died and the set-
tlements were deserted, The country was not attractive
for agricultufal'purposes, and hence for more than a
decade the road was used only by Indians, lumbermen,
and océasional trappers., - Along the north shore'bf Lake
Superior the 1énd foered‘little more.attraction for
fqrmeré. Yet a8 early as 1854 there was a trail eX=-
'teﬁding.from Minnesota Polnt as far as Beaver Bey. In
1857 the territorisl legislature in a memorial to Con-
gress asked for an appropriation for a military road,
which, had 1t been built, would have passéd.alqng the
shore .of Lake Superlor from Minnesote Point to Pigeon
River., The petitlon was nol granted, but in 1£58 the
Minnesota legislature suthorized the opehing of a road
along the north shore to Beaver Bay. It was not until
1871 that a road to Pigeon River materialized when an
approprlation of $1,500 from linnesote'!s internal im-
provement fund was used to help St. Louls and Lake courns
ties to open the road..9 |

In,the-meantime the failroad bad come to the ald

\

- 9, Primner, in Minnesota History, 16: 295-237; Soe—
clal Laws, 1868, p. 446-448, 1873, p. 314 GenerQI Laws
1869, p._llu, ante, p. 118 159
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of the éioneers in the. conquest of the frontier. ’in
1863 the success of Minnesota visionaries in their long
,struggle.against‘financial hardships wes signalized by
the opening of railroad service b’e’tv?een,St° Paul énd St,
 Anthony on the St, Paul and Pacific Rallrosd, By the
end of 1865Irailrpads were operating over 210 miles of'
road, TwoAyears later the Minneapolis and Cedar Valley
Rallroad had completed 1ts road to the Iowa line, where
1t connected with the .McGregor Western Railfoad, making
possible sn all rall connectlon with Chicago. By 1867

e rallroad constructed westward from Winona had reached
Waseca. Anctlier rallrozd followed the Minnesota River
'in the general direction of the Mendota-Blg Sioux-road,

" which by 1867 had reached Le Sueur. From St. Paulband
St. Anthony the branch line of the St; Péul'and Pacifiﬁ
~Rellroad reached St. Cloud in 1866, and the construction
of thé main line westward from Minneapolis toward the
'Red River Valley near the junction of the Boils des Bioux
and Otter Tell rivers was begun the following year. It
was completed in 1871, Northward from St, Paul the Leke
Superior and Miosissippi Railroad extended toward'Duluth
end the opening of service on this line 1in 187C stilled
the long plaint of the communitles at the heed of the
lskes, for they at last had a through connection‘with
St. Paul, But the construcﬁion of the line to Duluth
also meant that the construction of ancther -lmportasnt

rell 1link -- the Northern Pacific, authorized by Congress
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in 1864 -- could be begun. By the end of 1872 this road
ha&‘pushéd westward acrosé the wilderness,'firSt to
:Brainérd neer o0ld Crow Wing, end then along the route
of the Crow Wing trail to the Red River at ﬁoorhead.  S50
répidly a1d Minnesota's railwey system advance, that
by the end of 1873 there were almost two thousand miles
‘of railfoad in operation in the state. By the end of
»the decade the hileage hzd 1lncreased to more than three-
_ thousand and by the end of the century the latter figure
was more than doubled. 10 |
The construction of railroads hasfened the occupa~

tion of the frontier, for, in relation to the unéettled
interior, the towns along the line of a railrosd assumed
a position similar to thst which the river towns had
held during an earlier age. Then the steamboats had
brought settlers and supplies to the frontier, During
‘the later perlod, when the frontler had moved beyond the
reach of the river-steamboat,’the rallroads reached -to,
and sometimes beyond,;the'ffontier,'and portions of the
hinterland wkich had'béen inaccessible were readlly
reached by land-hungry settlers, On thls new frontier,
or series of frontlers, the processes of the advance
of settlement were the same as those that had been en-
'écted during the territorial period, Wherever the fron-

10, Messsge of GoverndrvMaféhali,~January 10, 1868,
in Minnesota, Executlve Documents, 1867, p., 24; Rail-

road Commissioner, Reports, 1872, p. 43; Railroad and
Warehou%e Commission, Reports, 1900, Pe. 3,v
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tier was 1o¢ated, roéds had_tb’be Opéned‘before the
wilderness was conquéred, The étory of the'develdpmegti.
- of the»trails about such a center as'Alexandria duringw

the late sixﬁies and early seventles 1s essentially the
same a8 that enacted 1n southeastern Minﬁésota during

the fifﬁies,'and 1t was repéated in the reglons farther
west durlng the seventies and eighties. When the last
frontier sreas of northern Minnesota weré settled dur-
ing the closing yesrs of the nineteenth éentury, the' |
processeé which those ploneers went through to open a
system of rosds werevessentially_thé same as thbss éi~
perienced by thelr earlier counterparts, | | R

In 1866 5t. Cloud waé the northern termlnus 6f the

81, Paul and Pacific Railroad; St, Cloud mefchants an-
ticlpatéd great financialvgains from,that.fédt, and(ﬁany:
. of them believed that the town would develop into a
wholesaling.point riveling St, Paul. At the celebration
commemorating the completion of thé raiquad to St. Cloud
- they were warhed thet "the country to the west 1is reédy
to pour into this granary.u-‘your town -- its surpius
products to be transported to the great mérkets.".ll St.
Cloud was already the center fof a large fdrwarding and
freighting business, and the co@pleiion}of the railrosd

~ increased activity in this field, Between three and four

hundred wagons were employed in hauling'supplies from the:

11, St. Cloud Democrst, August 23, 1866,
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end of the rallroed to the goverﬁﬁent.pOSts on the" fron-
tier, or to the posts of the Hudson's Bay éompany'duriné
the season which began in May and continued into the
early winter, In the spring of 1868 more than three
hundred teams from St. Cloud were on the roasd at one
time, and the passage of tralns containing forty or
fifty wagons were events so commonp}aoe that they seemed
scercely worthy of mentlon, St. Cloud also was the polnt
where the numerous small towns 1n the ;nterior:trans—

" shipped thelr supplies. The rasilroad brought these
inlend communitles closer to civilizetion, and, wilth the.
establishment of new wagon roads which opened wide

areas of agricultural lands to settlemént5 fmmigrante -
thronged 1n. For a distance of a hundred mlles or- -more,
merchants and businessmen turned to bt Cloud as the
source of thelr supplles.

The settleré in the interior country were as keenly
interested in bullding contacts with the rallroad as the
communities along the railroad:were in msking contacts
wlth them. Fﬁr the people 1n a town like Alexandris,
located ninety miles from the railroad on the crooked

stage roed from St. Cloud to Fort Abercrombie, the prob-
.lem of communication was important, They expectéd that
the rallrosd would be extended beyond St. Cloud, but

12.8t. Cloud Journsl, September 13, 27, October 25,
1866, Septempber 5, 1867, May 28, 1868; Sauk Centre
Herald May 14, 88 June 18, Seotember i7, November E,

1868, Mey 13, 27 1869 Alexandria POSU, May 5 June 5,
1869. ‘ _ :

{
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until 1t wes actually built, they were dependent on the
wagonerads. Consequently, they were‘intensely inter- .

ested in improving the old road and opening new ones,

The exceésive.Qost of transpofting goods by team'ég COM=-
‘pared with transportation by raill, however, was the de~-
cilsive factor in determining the towas to which the

trade of the inland communlities would flow. The edltor

of the Alexandria Post, in the spring of 1869, estimated
that it cost twelve dollars to haul forty bushels of
corn fifty miles by team, but that by railroed the seme
amount of'grain could be hauled-the same distance for
only four'aolléfs. More specifically, it cost Alexan-
dris merchsnts $i.25'to trensport a hundred pounds of
v,fréight from St., Cloud to Alexendria. Therefore, when
the construction of the main line of the St. Paul and
Paciflc Rallroad westward from Minnespolis was begun,
end 1t became apparent that the new rsilroad would pass
_ a short distance south of Alexandria, these pioneers
turned thelr atiention in.that.directioﬁ, Bj‘October, _
1870, the main line had reached Bensdn, only forty—eighi :
miles from Alexandria., The ambitious Alexandriansrwere”
fﬁlly prepared for the event, Almost a year before'theyA
had cut out a new road to Benson and had made arrange-
" ments for the inauguration of stage service as soon as
the rallroad reached that point, Within & short time
‘the stzge line was Operéting_on a dally schédule, and a

large frelghting budiqess was Qarr1ea'on. 'The ties,that
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bound the community to St. Cloud werg severed, because
#in these railroad daysAthe savlng of fqriy—five»miles

of staging 1s a great object." 13

- The ascendancy of Benson lasted less than & year.
In the summer of the following year, the heed of the
rallfoad reached Morris, a polnt which waé still closér
to Alexandria, Immedlately a new road Was bullt to the
iétter town in order that the shortest route to the
rallroad might be utilized, Two years léter the busy |
road to Morris had degenerated into a llittle-traveled
country road; for the resumption ofvconstruction on the
branch line had brought the rallroad to Melrose, a polint
st111 closer to Alexandria. ‘The cqnstrucﬁion of several
modern graln elevators at Melroée, together with spirited
.cpmpeﬁition‘between a number of graln dealers there,
.made that polint a very faVOfable market for the wheat
of the ‘Alexandria country and provided an additional id—
~ducement for the traffic of the égricultural reglons of -
fwestern Minnesota to move 1n that direction., Thirty
thousand bushels of wheat were recelved at the Melrose.
elevators in Jsnuary, 1873, and muéh of 1t came from
the Alexandria and Long Pralrie country. Travel fron
Alexandrla centered at Melrose for more than five years,
 for the panic of 1873 compnletely diérupted the bullding

program of the St. Paul and Paclfic Railroad,_ It was not

13, Alexandria. Post January 20, 1868, April 7 June‘
19, ‘November 20, 16869, January lb, October 1, 15 1870
-Narch 11 May 27 1871. ' o
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until 1878 that the construction of the rallroad was
 resuhéd On July 30 train service was extended to Sauk
Cenuer, and on November 15 the railroad flnally reached
.'Alexandria, endlng that phase of the development of its
communlcation system, Y+ | |

dhile the people of Alexandvia were so keenly 1n~ |
terestsd in thelr own problem of develooing lines of |
communication to the raillroad, that community was itself
tne center toward which thée country beyond it turned.
For & decade Alexandria was the last town of any?size
on the westward road to the Red River Valley, and it
became the market center for the settlers in the country
beyond., For several years the flour mill at Alexandria
was the only one in that portion of the state, and the
pioneers‘who were bullding settlements such aéIEliiabeth~
town, St. Olaf, Clitherall, Otter Tail City, or Férgus 
Falls made regular pilgrimages tolAlexandria for flour
and feed, Many of them came forty or fifty mlles for
tnis purpose, but the appearance upon Alexandria's
streets of twenty five or thirtj teams from the far-off
settlement of Rush Lake, near present-day Perhem in.

Otter Tall County, provoked the editor of the Alexandria

Post to exclaim: "Think of it, ye dwellers in towns
and cltles, who all your 1lives have had your barrels of
. flour roiled to your doors -- one.hundred and fifty

: 14, Alexandria Post June 24 September 16, 1871
February 8, 15, 1873, August 2, November 15, 1878
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miles to mill." These remote communities watched the i
progress of railroad construotion on both the Northern
.Paoifio and the St,. Paul and Pacific lines with no lit-
tle interest. The beginning of rallroad service on the
Aiatter line to Morris in 1871 dlvorced their trade from
Alexandrla, for it was the signal-for the inauguration
of a heavy ffeighting bus;ness end the éstablishment of
a stage line over & hewly opened state road from Morris

to Fergus Falls, and the extension of these services
over country’trails'to the.other towhs_of_the county.,

As eoon as the failroad was completed to ﬁhe town of
Campbell, the road from Morrls weas forsaken in favor of
'a newer route to the nearest town on the railroad, Each
~community sought its nearest way to the rallroad, and
when the Northefn Pacific Rallroad reached this region,
the towns along 1ts route attracted the trade of the
interlor villages such as Otter‘Tail City and Pelicen
Rapids. While there was some competitioh between the
two rallroads for the trade of 8 comnunity such as
.Fergus}Falls, e oommohsepse compromiée preVailed where-
by eaoh communlty sought 1lts railroad over the rouie

which was shortest and most easlly traveled. 15

15. Alexandrla Post, October 10, December 26, 1867,
December 3, 1868, January 6, 1869; Sauk Centre Herald
June 11, 1868 Fergus Falls Advocate, April 29, June 3,
10, 17, July l December 23, 1871, March 9, 16, 1873,
Jenuary 28, February 18, July 15, December g, 1874
Otter Tall City Record, November 35, 1871; Soecial Laws,
1871, p. 345, The Tegislature in 187o aoprOpriated four :
: hundred dollars to 2id in the construction of a state
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The construction of the Ndrthem Pacitic Rallroad
_weaned away from Alexandria'the trade of such_communi-
ties as Rush Leke and Parker's Prairie.. The trade of
the former was irretrievably idst,‘fdr 1t was within a
few miles of the rallroad. The people of Parker's
Prairle were somewhat more remote from the railroad, bﬁt '
they at once undertock the task of opening roads north-
ward, In the fall of 1871 they completed their new
road, which led to Wadena, and in 1874 the legislature

‘ aﬁthorlzed the location of a state road between the two
towhs and appropriated se#en hundred dollérs to be used
for building bridges across the streams along thé wéy.
Over this road a stage line Was-Operéted and a heavy
traffic in wheat wes carried on, The allenation of the
trédé of Parker's Pralrie was not allowed to ocqur~w1£h~
out & contest on the part of Alexandria, howevér, for
the same sesslon 6f the 1égislature wh1ch authorized
the opening of the road to Wadena, authorized a.state,
i_road'to be lald out from Alexandrla to Parker's Pralrie.
The dlstance‘to Aléxandria was shorter than that to
Wadena, and, had éll other conditions beeh e@ual, Alex—'
" ‘andria loglcally should have drawn the trade,of the
road from Frazee to Pelican Raplds, thus'assuring the
former place of the trade of Pellcan Raplds. See Spe-~
clel Laws, 1875, p. 413, Alta Kilmber, 1n "The Coming
of the Latter Day Saints in Otter Teil County," in
Minnesots History, 13: 391 (December, 1933), relates
tnat the seobtlers at Clitherall hauled thelr grain to

Cold Springs, near St. Cloud, 1o have ‘1t ground into
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Pérker's(Prairie country. 'But evén when the rallroad
reached Alexandria in 1878, trade continied to flow to
‘Wadena, because the road to that place was much better
than thet to Alexandrlia. The efforts of Alexendrla
merchants to construct a good road were of no avéil,
and the grain trade of Parker's Prairie flowed to the
Northern Pacific town of Wa_dena° 16

The Northern Pacific towns monopolized a large
sharebof the trade of Todd County, drawing from a ter-
ritory extending as far southward as Long Prsirle,
Before the‘removal of the Winnebago agency from Long
Prairie, a milltary road had led from the Misslssippl
River near Little Falls up theIValley of the Swan River
" to Long Prairle, and as early as 1852 a trail had led
into the Long Prairie region from the Sauk Valley. - |
When settlement éot under way 1in the late slxtles and .
early seventles, however; 1t was concentraped in the
valley of the Long Prairie River, and 1t was over two
roads, one on.each slde of the river, which led from
the Northern Pacific town.of Motley to:Long Prairie,

that settlers came‘into the county. Durlng tue fal}

16, Otter Tall City Record, November 4, 1871; ¥Wadena
Tribune, March 10, 1877, Merch 30, October 5, 1878;
Alexandria Post, July 4, October lO 1879, AuJust 5,
November 25, 1881 a3601al Laws, 1874 p. 309, 295, 1In
1876 the lpgislature authorized the Opening of a road
from a point on the Long Prairie Rlver south of Perker's
Prairle to the state road from Parker's Prairie to
Wadena, thus weanlng away still more of the trade of
the Alexa ndria mercnants._ Speclel Laws, 1876, p. 195,
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2,_of 1873 a new‘road betweén Sauk Center and LdpglPrai—“»
L‘ rie wés opened, paftly by.céunty action and partiy By
3 " the co-Operative-éction of the people living along its_
route, and over this road a mail and passenger stage
| line was established which later was extended along
the river roads to Motley. By the middle seventies,
-the Long Prairie country had become ‘a wheat growing
reglon of conslderable importance, and the rough prai-
rié roads were depended upon to bear the graln to the
railroédsq'l7
During the unusually wet season of 1873, the Todd
County roads became quagmires, and ﬂhe bogged—down grein
growers sought for other means of transport. In 1870
a-COntractor furnishing timber supplies for the Northern
" Pecific Rallroad construction crews had bullt a flat
‘boat,'called the "Black Maria,” upon which he trens-
’pOrtéd his cargoes down the Long Prairie River, This
boat, and another of similar design, were adapted for
- use 1n transporting grein from Long Prairie to Motley.
"It was not a great desl more economlcal then hauling.
'»by team had been, for the aVerageléost of the trip was
- about twenty cents per bﬁshel of whest, and that was
what teamsters éstimated the cost of "wagoning on good

roads" to be, but the exlsting roads were so bad that

17. Ante, p. 51; Minnegote Pione€r bebruary 19 '
1852; Alexendria Post December 18, 1869 Saulk Centre
,Heralo December 1, 1870 bept&mber 14, 21 28, 18732,
January 4, October 18, lo7o, December 26 18.4 Marcn

3, 1877, Larch 14, 1879.




197

1t was practically'the oniy Wéy 1h which the grain could
be Bot to market, The enthusiastic froptier navigators
deéided that if a steanm engine»weré instalied on one of
the'fl&tbbats, 1t would be possible to meke the return’
-trip in much less time and with less eXpense, In the
spring of 1875, therefore, a steamboat eppeared on the
little Long Prairle Rilver snd made & number of trips
back snd forth to Motley hauling wheat and supplies.,
Unfeortunately, howeﬁer, the river was high enough to:
float tﬁe steamboat only during a few weeks in the
spring and a month in the fall, and navigatlon wes hind-.
ered'by a tortuous chennel and numercus obstructions.
The legislature of 1875, therefore, was prevalled upon
to appropriate $2,000 to cleer the channel., Drier
seasons followed, however, and the roads improved 56
much that the steémboat venture was glven up. The boatl
lay on the sandy beach of the river at Long Preirie for
several years thergafter. 18 _
aGradually a system of roads into the Long Prairie
reglon was defeloped; In 1871 s new road from Little
Falls to Sauk Centér, which the legislature had suthor-
18. Sauk Centre Herald, October 20, 1870, June 20,
December 5, 36, 1874, April 3, May 29, July 3, 31,
1875, June 24, 1876; Speclal Laws, 1875, p. 405, The
Fergus Falls people embarked on a simllar experiment
in 1873 and 1874 with better success, A fleet of barges
was constructed to haul flour and lumber to Fort Garry,
and ln the summner of 1873 & steemboat was navlgated on

the Ctter Tell River. Fergus Falls Advocale, February
16, 286, March 19, August 37, October &, 1872, .
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1zed in 1867, was opened in ordér that,ghe-dfouthes€}1§keh
farmers of the Little Falls region mlght exchange lumber
for graih which was raised in large quéntlties in the
southern portion of Todd County. The road facilitated
the séttiement of that large area beﬁween Sauk Center
and Little Falls, as well. During the last part}of the
seventies, a state road from Wadena to Long Prairie,
following the east bank of the Wiﬁg River, was bullt,
providing a-new-foad‘to communities such as Hewlti, #
Eagle Bend, and Browerville. For the northern portion
of the county, the-natural outlet remalined the Northern
Pecific towns, but the completion of' the St, Paul and
Pecific to Szuk Center durlng the summer of 1878 had
£he effect of drawlng to that town the trade from, the
‘southern portion of the county. Untll a rallroad was .
'built from Sauk Center to Wadena in the summer of 1891,
. however, the communlcation system of Todd County was -
besed ﬁpon the development of a serles of wagon rqads
_ extending north to the Northern Pacific and. south to
the St. Paul and Pacific railroads. 19
" Directly rnorth of the Long Prairie_region lay
enother fertile area of prairie and timberland which
was made accessible to settlers Dby the construction of
the Nopthern Pacific Rallroad. The Shell preirles,
19, Seuk Centre Héréld, July 15, 1871; VWadens Tribune,

May 26, August 4, 1877, Speclal Lews, 1667, p. 329, 1877,
p. 376-378. _ S | o
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. three in number, ﬁere located aboﬁt ten miles farther
north of the railroad than Long‘PrairieAwaé south of 1t,
It was possible to:reaeh this reglon by wagon before
the Northern Pacifilc Railroad-waévbuilt wesﬂward,from

| Bralnerd, bﬁt the route lay by a roundabout weay, follow-
ing the government road from Crow Wing to Leech Qake,
which was o?éned in 1855,-and thence along the rough
wagon road made 1n 1870, when the Chlppewa Indians were
removed to the White Earth agency,_ This 1atteritrail
skirted the northern edge of the middle prairie, near
present~déy Park Raplds, and crossed the third pralrie
from east to west near Osage. In 18723 the agent at White

TEarth opened a road to the railroad at Detroit, by follow=-
ing which, it was elso possible to gain acceés to the
Shell prairies from the railrocad. »Both routes were long

_and circuitous, however, aﬁd,the uncertaln nature 6f
the roads kept the regioh from becoming popular, ,Until
the late seventles, therefore, the‘ShEIl prairies re-
malnedAunsettled.-gg.

During the winter of 1878 a few ploneers explored

s route for a road northward from Verndale to phe:Sheil

prairie reglion, Tt was a rough snd stumpy roed which

they cut out for spring travel, bﬁt it wes a more direct~
route, Durling the next two years settiers thronged

toward the prairies, but the bad roads were a serlous

20. Ante, p. 90, 100, 115-117.



hindrénce to“iﬁmiération. One wduld-be'aettier,ﬂtarr&ihg'
at Wrightstowh in the spring of 1880, wrote te a friend -
in Alexahdria that'numerous settlers were meking their
way to the Shell prairies, but that "others are return-
ing, uttering the most bltter curses egalnst the country,
all owiné to such bad roads." The editor of a Pérk
Rapids newspaper wrote, "A ride . . . over the presenf.
road 1s not a delightful trip." Forty miigs or less
separated the Shell pralries from the railroad, but over *
.the roundabdut road the dlstahce wasAébouﬁ sixty miles.gl
In 1881 a new road to the Shell prairile country was
opened from Detroit by one of the couhty officials of
Becker County who undertook on his own initlatlve to
locate thls road, When he demonstrated that a road
could be made, the county commissioners appropriated:
‘four hundred dollars of county funds for that pﬁrpose.
The only possible route was also a roundobout one, wind-
ing among the lakes- of Becker County, but it was many
miles shorter than the old road through White Earth,
Its construction made 1t possible to travel from Park
Rapids to Detroit by team with 1little more difficulty
than attended a Journey from Park Rapidet07Verﬁdale;'22
inAthe mesntime the citlizens of Wadena were view-

. - 8l. Park Raplds Entarorige, July 25, October 26, 1888
-Wadena County Trioune (Verndele), Aoril 19, 1879; Alex-
‘andria Post,. August 8, 1879, June 25, 1880.

"22. Perk Reoids E“teroriee, August 17, 1883; Alvin

:,H Wilcox, A Pioneer History of Becker County, Minnesota,
 654-659 (St Paul, 1907). . _
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'1ngbthe deve1opmsnt of this néw fegioh-ﬁith consldereble
1ntefest.  The wheat trade flowing £6 ﬁ§;ni&la was an |
inducement to them toAméke efforts to open a road to
divert st least a pbftion'of.th;s'traffic tb,their town,
Accordingly, the meréhants of Wedena contributed private-
ly to a fund for the constructlon of a road to tap the
Verndale road sbout a dozen miles north of town. Their
first effort to obtaln the Shell prairie tradé was not
successful, for they falled to build a better rosd or
to shorten the traveling distance. In 1883, however,
construction of a new roéd was begun which would shorten
the distance materlally, That the opening of thisfnew
ghorter route wes welcomed by the Shell prairie resié
dent§ is dempnstrated by thelr wlllingness to help to
construct 1t. They bullt not only the portion that ren
through Hubbagd‘County, buﬁ_also two mlles of it in
Wadena County. The completion of the roéd was greeted
as "certainly a gresat improvement on all the old roads,
being fifteen miles shorter, and a far better road to
travel over," It-savéd freighters an extra day of
traveling, and made Wadena the nearest point on the ralil-
- road, A stsge line was put into service over the new
road; and one proud citizen who traveled in a private
conveyance boasted that he had covered the distance in
a little more than six hours, a remarkablé feat in com-

parison with the previous averaée time of fourteen hours

on the road betueen Park Rapids and. Verndale._iccmmercially,
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,fhe.}bad Was érofitabie for"Wadéha,lfor thefﬁﬁeét trains
~ which formefly.had tra&eled to Verndale now.madéwadehe;the |
terminus of thelr Jjourney. In response to the wondering’.
comment of a Wadena editor on the 1ncreased nunber of
- Park Rapids visitors in town, the Park Rapids newspaper
ﬁeplied, e can tell our Wadena neighbors -- 1f they do
not alfeady realize the fact -— that this highway'they
have cast up will be a very good thing for them,® 25
| " Eager as_the'settlers of the~Shell prairies were
ﬁo 1mproﬁe thelr wagbn roads, their primary concern wase
that of obtaining a railroad, In the fall of 1883
their plans secmed about tﬁ materialize, for a prelim-'
inary survey of the route between Wadena and Park Raplds
‘wes made, Then the plan collepsed. In desperation thése
residents of an 1ﬁ1and community resérted to the same
expedlent that the settlers in the Long Pralrie dlstrilct
and those of Fergus Falls had tried a decade earlier,
Thejvbuilt'a steamboat -- the "Lotta Lee®" «- to be navi-
‘gated on the Shéll'Rivér,_which they launched with great
ceremony in the summer of 1884, It made one trlp_down
the river to Motiey, but 1t never returned, the obstacles
to navigation being 00 great. The raiquéd outlook con-
.tinued to be dim throughout the decgde, but on August 1,
1891, the 1nauguration of regular train gervice over the
23, Park Rapids Enterorise, August 17,-1882;'Hgbbord

. County Enterprise (Park Rapids), August 10, 1883, Hay 1,
1885, October 19 ,1888 ‘May - lO June 48 July 5, 20,_ '

- hugust 2, 1889,
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Sauk RapidsFPark Rapids branch of the Great Northern
Rellroad gave the community the outlet 1t needed, The
wégon roads to Wadena and Verndale faded into obscurity,
degénerating into cbuntry roads over which the ferumers
along thelr routes bfought thelr gfaiﬁ to the railroad,
or over which an occaslonal settler, Who preferred to
migrate by wagon, made hisvwa R 24 , _
Park Raplds had had some lntercourse during the
ear}y years of the eighties wlth the Indian agencj town
on Leech Lake, It ﬁas restricfed by the féét that the
distahce'from Leech Lake to Bralinerd was as short as
thaet to Wadena or Verndgie by wa& of Park Raplds, and
since ail three towns were located on the reilroad,
there was 1little reason for blazing out é new road for
trade to follow. The completion of the Great Northern
Railroad to Park Rapids changed the entire pictﬁre,
however, and after 1891 that town was the polnt which
the peOple of the eagency iown patronized, With the corm~-
pletioﬁ of the reilroad, tﬁo, the process of settlement
in the reglon got under way, The harvesting of the lum-
ber crop was hastenéd, and gradually an agricultural
settlement begen. By the Tall of 1892, a mall-atage
line was put'into operatlon between Park}Rapids and the
town of Leech Lake over the old egency road between Leech
Lake and White Earth, - A road was opened to the country

- 24, Hubbard County Eﬁterﬁrisé; October 19, November
3, 1883, August 8, 1884, July 31, August &, 1881, -
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i&ing far to the-ndrth, and an increasing number of"

.settlers began to settle in the Itasca StateAPark région
. end, farther north, in the comzunlty sbout Lake Bemidji,
whioh hithervo had procured supplies frém Fosston, al-
most & hundred miles to the northwest, The Opehing of
thls road was characterized as a 'wlse 1nvestment" for -
Park Raplds, and the chronlcling of arrivals from these
two reglons seemed to bear out the claim, The'survéying
of a stralghter and shorter road in the late fall of
1894 further facilitated the development of the sgricul-’
tural resources of the country, and, by making Itasca
State Park more readily accessible, facilitated the |
explditation of the recreational resources at the head
ofAthe Mississippi. 85

The settlement of the prairie regions of south-

" western and Wesﬁern Minnesota moved more sléwly than
those of the wooded cenﬁral and eastern part, Ploneer
accounts show that, although a few settlers usually had
migrated into the prairié-frontier in advance of the
rallroad, it was only when the railro »ds had established
lines of communication that the prairie countles boomed,
Towns such as Marshall, Windom, and Worthington were
railroad towns, and meny of them were lald out Ey the
reilroad companies themselves, The remoteness of the
prairie counties from navigable Waters'updn which to

- . 25, Hubberd County Enterprise, October 41 1892 Jan-
-uary 6, 1893 June 1, July 27 December 14, 28 1894
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float_théir'produéts.to market wes one reason fdr>thqing'
irefarded dévelépdent. More important is tﬂé fact that |
the presence of materials,for bullding pﬁrposes was &
vital factor 15 the settlement of-new.regions, and
these were lacklng on the prairieg. _While sod shantles
presented & possible solution to the pfoblem of ﬁrovid;
ing shelter for man and beast, they were temporary and,
at best, unsatisfactory. Untll some economical means

was devised for,bringing to the pralriesithe materlals
for’building purposes, and for\bearing_from_them the
.crops of wheét, the speclal product of the Northwest,
settleﬁent.lagged, Wagon roads did.not satisfy this
Tequlrement satisfactorily, for distances were too great,
The solution for the trahSportation problem was provided
by the rallroad, which became the chief settlement ag;ncy
of the prairies;'gs |
The pioneers who attempted to settle 2 prairie
,regloh.such ag that about Jacksoh, found that thelr
problems were numerous and»difficult, _Settlement in
that region had begun pfior.to the admission of.M1hnef
éota to the Unlon, but successlve setbacxs, such as
the Inkpadutsh massacre, the panic of 1857, the Civil
Wer, and the Sioug outbreak in 1862, effectlvely ghécked
1ts growth, Jackson hed opne adventage over most of the
26, For‘a discusslon of this problem, see Agnes M.
Larson, "The Golden Age of Lumberlng in Minnesota," in

Minnesota Alumni Weekly, %2: 438 {April 15, 1933) and
“Larson, The Whect Market and the Farmer, 55-60.
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prairie communities, and thaﬁ wésiitsfproximify to
settled areas,vboth in Minnesota and lowa. Consequehtly,
1t did not suffer from the effects of poor communication
facllitiéS'to 2.9 gresat an extent as did those farther
Qest; Yet this éommunity, though close to the borders
of civilization, had to depend for ite mall service upon
an uncertaln weekly delilvery made on horseback across
the prairie from Emmett, Iowa. Gradually.prairie roads
were openéd, and by 1870 mall communication had beéh

- established by way of Fairmont and Madella as Well;

Even so, the Jackson people complained that in the spring'
and in reiny seasons they sometimes had to go two weeks,
and often much ionger, without mall service, because the
unbrj geG prairie streams, ordinarlly mere creeks, be-
came raging torrents. The constructlon of the St, Paul
and Sloux City Rellroad, during the early seventles, |
brought this community within reach of the rallroad,

As rallroad construction prggressed, a new stage service
was begun between the nearest,failroad tdwns and the
interlor village, From Madelia, the héad of the rall-
hroad moved to St., James, and finally to Windom, carce-
ly twenty miles from Jackson, The constructlon of the
1féilroad through southwestern Minnesota brought lmproved
mall faciiitiesifbr.the community, 1t heastened the
occupatién of the lands within Jackson County, and,

ebove all it made nracticable the establishment cof

" a lumber yard, thereby se»isfying a need thau ‘had-
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"long been felt by the citizens.".27 -7
The ploneer settlers who moved into the prairle
counties, after the reilroads had shown them the way to
solve their trensportation problem, found that their
tasks were the same as_those wh;ch confronted-their breth-
ren in the wooded areas. From the rallroad towns out-
ward, settlement soread as rapidly as a system of tralls
could be opened, and in the interior country, thirty,
ferty,_or_fifty miles from a rallroad, settlements
bloomed which were dependent for taelr supp;ies, includ-
ing the greatly valued lumber, upon the rallroad towns,
. Thus Marshall, on the Winona and St. Pefer Railroad,
was the source of supplies for eommunities as rerote asg
IL.ake Benton and Lake Shetek, The'town of Lac qul Farle
in splite of its locatlon neer'the_Minnesote River, found
its merkets over roads leading northward to the St. Paul
and Pacific R&lerdd town of Benson, or southward to
_ Canby on the w1nona end St, Peter Railroad, The town
of Windom, established in 1871 on the St Paul and Sloux
Clty Rallroad, became the market town for the frontier
community of Jackson., Worthington, which had been a
-straggling settlement named Okabens receiving 1£s mall
27. Jackson Reoublic, April 8, 15, 22, 29, May 5,
October 8, 1870, April 8 15, 22, 29, May 20, September
22, 1871, Januery 6 July a7, Decembcr 14, 1872 The
leglslauure in 1868 authozized the ooening of a road
" from Blue Earth City to Jackson, and the followlng year

- one from Madelia to Jackson. Speclzl Lews, 1868, p. 452,
1869, p 322. : : :
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by a roundabout route leading through Jackson; became
& market of’prime'importance after the railroad was
bullt through it in 1872, end by 1874 & network of roads
led to 1t from settlements o8 far away as Spirit Lake,
Iowa, or Minnehaha County, South Dskote, or the lower
end of Lake Shetek, 20
In all the southwestern counties the roads were

bgttomléss quaegmires after rainy seasons, and durlng
the drouth of summer the deep dust made them almost
equally bottomless, so that 1t was "difficult for a team
to drew a load of wheat! over them, The road from Wor-
thington to Luverne, over which two or three hundred
teams traveled each week, "bringing grain to Worthingtcn
and taklng back lumber and supplies," was in such bad
condition during the spring of 1876, that several teams
whose drivers ventured over 1it, "were fivé hours coming
three miles," To remedy the sltuation it was suggested
that the lumber dealers and grain buyers of Wortkhlngton,
who profited most from the trade of the outlyling cpmmunl—

28. Lac qul Parle County Press (Lac qui Perle), Jan-
uary 4, February 23, 1873, September 17, 1874; Preirie
Schooner (Marshall), August 33, 1873, March 12, December
21, 1874; Windom Reporter, September 7, 21, 1871, Feb-
ruary 1, Mey 2, 1872; western Advence (Worthington), Mey
23, September 5, 1874; VWorthingston pdvence, October 17,
1874, March 12, June 23, 1875, ilay 18, June 15, 1876;
- Jackson Republic, April 22, 1871; L, R. Moyer end O, G.
Dale, History of Chippewa and Lec gqul Parle Countles, -
Minnesots, 1: 377, 378, 477 (Indisnapolls, 1916); Arthur

P, Rose, An Illustreted History of the Countles of Rock
and Pipestone, 438, 53, 70 (Luverne, 1911).
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i

ties, should combine to place tesms and.mén at'work,td .

R repalr the roads. The editor of the Wirdom Reporter,

after'hehhad made an exploratory Journey over the{rbad 
to Jackson, called thelroadA“a rough and hard one to-
travel," He complained of the necessity for fréquent
pauses to rest his horse, and of the constant danger of
being thrown from the anlimal as ;t attempted to travel:

29

over the deeply rutted'route,_ Local enthusiasts

claimed that "the mere earth, with e few inexpensive
cﬁlverts'here aﬁd there, wlll make a capital roed in .
any dirsction," but they halled the construction of
rallroads as & welcome substitute. A historian of Lac
qui Parle County, for example, after recording that
early settlérs had to travel.sixty.miles or more by ox
team to have thelr grain ground, remerks that the conQ
struction.of the raillroad to the county in 1884 ﬁchanged
the entiré course of hilstory for Lac qui Parle County,
and opened upvfor,it a new era of commercial and agri-
culturel importénce;" 80
- In the Red River.Valley, thét other éfeat prairie
reglon of Minnesotes which came under the dominion of
the plow in the latter portlion of the nineteenth century,
somewhat different conditlons prevéiled° ' The Red River
29.Western Advance, March 14, 1874; Worthington Ad-
vance, Octcber 17, 1874, June 18, October 1, 22, 1875,
%ggi? 16, June 1, 1876; Windom Reporter, September 21, :

30, Yestern Advasnce, Marﬁh'ié, 1874; Moyer end Dale,
Chippewe gnd Lac gul Parle Counties, 1: 378, 478,
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trails,‘worn Bj‘the.carts of several generatiohs bf
Red River traders, gave aocesé to this fertile area ‘
through three ‘maln routes* bné‘up the Mihhesota'Vallex
to Big Stone Leke and Lake Traverse; another up'the Sauk
Valley to the confluence of the Bols des Sioux and Otter
Tall rivers; and the third over what was knowh as the
Crow Wing trsll., When settlement in the Red River Val-
ley began, each of these became lmportant means of enﬂerm
ing the country, °1 | |
During the winter of 1857 e contract wa s made be-
then the Minnesoto Stage Companhy and the Hudson 8 Bay
Company for the transportation of the supplies of the
great ‘trading corporation from St, Paul to the comoanyl
posts along the Red River,: bubsequently Anson Northup ———
ip;oneer lumberman, hotel man, steamboat navigetor, and’
promoter‘generélly -- transported the hull and englne
of & llitlie steamboat, which he'had been operating oﬁ
" the Mississippl River sbove the Falls of St. Anthony,
across the western plgins from Crow Wing to Georgetown
during the bitter cold of a.M1nnesota winter.‘glﬁ,tﬁe
spring of 1859 he assembled his boat'on the Red Riyerv
and 1lneugureted steamboat navigation on thosé Western
waters, The Minnésbta Stage-Company, on 1ts part,
opened a stege road from St, Cloud,'up the valley of

the Sauk River, to the Red River at Georgetown, where
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1£ nade contact with the ste&mboat, Purchasing the
boat‘from Northup, ‘the company 1naugurated é combination
stage—boat and wagon~boat passenger and freight service
to the British dominion, 52 | | | -
Little settlement accompanied this éxtehsion Qf

communication westward. To be sure, & number of town-

sites were staked out, and a few éettlements such as those

at McCauleyville and Georgetown were beguh, but égriCulu
- tural development was almost lacking, and the growth of .
séttlemént was éxceédingly slow., . A part of this can be
attributed to the sequence 6f events which slowed dovn
the'process of settlement in Minnesdta générally during
'these years §—,the panic of 1857 and the accompanying
depression, the outbreak of the Cif;l War, and the Sioux
uprising of 1862.‘ A moré important factor in the élow
growth of settlement in the valley was its r@motenpés
from the ‘settled arcas of Minnesota, for land close uO
settlements att”acted homeseekerc first, For almost
'}twenty years, therefore, the route between American and
British éettlements remalned essentlally a trade route;
1t was not & pathwey for settlement,

‘Three of the railroad lines chartered by the Minne—

 sota leglslature rescied into the valley of the Red Riv- -

er, The main line of the St. raul and Paclflc tapped

~the Valley at Breckenridgn, providing access through the

. 32, Larsen, in North Dahota Historiczal Quafterly, B:
46-48, - v _ v N ) .



southern gatéway,.as had the Mihnésdta Vélléy trail of
en earlier day. The St. Paul and Pacific branchiiine,
which reached St, Cloud in 1866, came té the Red Rivér
Valley through the Sauk Valiey rdﬁte, aﬁd»then'extendéd
| northward the entire length of the velley to the Cana-
diaen border opposite Pembina, The Northern Paclfic Rail-
_foad, beginning at Lake Superior, followed the route
of the 0ld Crow Wing trall from Brainerd to Detrolt,
then, turhing westward, crossed the Red Rlver ét_Moor—
head. The main line of the St, Paul and Pacific reached
‘the Red River Valley in 1871, and 1t was followed in
1872 by the Northern Pacific, The comling of the rail-
roads was the signal for a burst of activity in trade
and & brisk lmmigration to the lands adjacent to them,
In entlclipstion of a large increaso in trade, the Minne-l
sote Stege Company in the summer of 1871 opened a stuge |
1ine toward Fort Garry. By the middle of June the‘lihe,
running on the Dakota side of the river, was opened 1o
a point forty miles north of Georgetown, named Frog
~Point, and service to Fort Garry was begun on‘September
11, % | |

The openling of the stage llne stimulated the‘growth‘
of communities such as Fisher's Landing,,located on the
Red Leke River a short distance above 1ts houth, which

had been established a short time after the beginning
. ) '

_ 33, Lersen, in North Dakota historical derterly, o
25-57. : : :
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- of steamboat navigation 6n the Red River."'For_the most
part; ﬁowéver, these communities Weré eithef:wood sta-
tions for boats or stage stations, whébe.relays 6f horses!
were'obtained or passengers were put up for the hight,
“The prinoipal-interest of the settlers,_théfefore, was
not agrioﬁltural, buﬁ commerclial, In 1872 the St, Paul
andAPacific Railroad, without Waiting for the comple-
tion of the branch line between St, Cloud and the Red
River, began construction on thegPehbina~branch north-
" ward from the Northern Pacific Railroad at Glyndon.

_ The branch reached Warren thet fall, but the panic the
" "following yesr struck with devastating force, and all
‘thought 'of completing the line ﬁo the intsrnatidnal
bouhdary was‘drOpped. Traln service over the branch .
wes intermittent and unprofitable, and, as & result, .
service over the northern portion was abandoned during
the. trying period. Indeed, the track on the portion

of the branch line extending,beyond the Red Lake River
was teken up and the iron used for constructing a short
branch.westward to Fisher's Landing. The construction
of the branch‘llne, however, resﬁlted in the migration
of a conslderzble number of piloneer farmers into that |
' portion of the valley.  North of the'railroad, settle-
ment remsined dormant; slong its line,-communitigs such
as Crdokstpn,vAda, and Glyndon grew up. | |

_ During the late seventles a movement of populstion

*»into‘the>Réd River Velley bééan;- It wasAfosteréd-byf



the railroéd companies, for they wished to dispose of -
thelr lands, and to this end they hastened the cémple-
tion of the brsnch line te the international boundary,
‘But in addition to the rzllroad, thefe“ﬁas anothér fac-

- tor which alded in opening this vast area. In 1879 the
leglslature appropriated a thousand dollars frdm the
internal improvement fund for the construction of s
wagon road from White Earth to St. Vincent, across from
Peablna, The road followed almost exactly the route of
the eastern trall to the Red River settlement worn.by'.
the carts of the tréders almost half a céntury earlier,
At Whlte Earth 1t Jolned the Detroit-Red Lake road, for
the construction of which the federal govermment had
appropriated funds in 1873 gnd 1874, It was the connect-
ing 1ink that made feasible communication by wagon with
the interior poftion of the Red River Valley. Immigrants
- poured in by the hundreds in the perigd‘following the
openlng of this road and of the rellroad, some by train,
some by boat, but'more,by-prairie schooner, to take up
land, eand settlement reached inland the wholeblength

of the Valléy° By.ihe beginning of the eighties,_the |
‘_whéat gfowers of the Réd River Valley hed gelned national
recognition, and the feme of the bonsnza farms in that
Tertlle area wes widespread, In 1880 the elevators étu
Fisher's Léndlng alone'shipped.to Minneapolis 570 car-

-

loscds of wheat, and other stations along the route of
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the St. Vincent exterision of the reilroad made cor-
respondingly héavy éhipments,'34 .

In the agricultural,dewelOpmeht of the'Red River

Valley, the construction of a long-distance network of

wagon roads played, on the whole, an inconspicuous part.,

For that reglon, the railroed was the essential slemepnt

‘that made for scttlement; the wagon road was supplemen-

tary to it., The wagon road Openéd the way into the val-

‘ley, but it was the raillroad which, by providing az mcans

' of rapidlylénd econbmically moving to market the bunmper

c¢rops of hard spring wheat, furnished the spark for

- setting off the overwhelmling movement of settlement into

the area, Without the wagon road, many farmers, perhaps,
would not have ventured into the valley; without th?
rallroad, few of them wouldlhaVe been éble to remain,
for théir bumper wheat crops would have been of little

value if they hed had to pay the heavy toll of trans-

. '34. Fisher's Landing Bulletin, May 22, 239, 1880;
Speclal Laws, 1879, p. 375~377; report of the state
auditor, 1879-80, in Minnesota, Executive Documents,
1880, vol. 1, p. 274. & part of the slowness wiin which
the Red River Valley was settled may be explained by the
fact that a controversy was raging between the Northern
Pacific and the St. Paul end Pacific rallroads over the .
title to a-huge tract of land which both clalmed under
the terms of their land grant charters., Until that dis-
pute was settled in 1878 little land in the Red River
Valley wes opened to settlement, for much of 1t was

©.owned by the compenies, Return I, Holcombe and Williem -

H, ‘Bingham, eds., Compendinum of History snd Biography

?

-of Poik County, Minnesota, 63-67 (iinneapolis, 1918);
- History of the Red River Velley, Past and Present, 1:
832, 233 (Grend Forks end Chlcego, 1909).




316

portation to market by.téama

Occasibnal references are found in contemporsry
'nEWSpapers to the 16ng disténces'which some farmers
traveled in order to reach.the'lqcal wheat mafket, but
the éreat preponderance of references regarding roads
‘are to those within the townshlp, or to those in adja-
cent townshlps, and‘the problems of'mainténance and
construction from the first were relegated to positions
of purely 1ocal‘cdnoern. Cne reason for ﬁhis disin-
- terest 1n roads 1s that the agriculture that develbped
in ihe Red River Valley durlng the seventles and elghtles
Wés of a @1g«sbale kind. Farmers owning a section of
land upon which a crop of wheat was growlng were not 1in-
clined to be concerned about road conditions. It was
a éoﬁparaﬁlVely_easy matter for them to get a‘railroad
company to put ln a convenient sidetréck upon which they
and thelr nelghbors could load thelr wheat directly into
cars, Thelr need for roads was 5reatest at the_timé of.
marketing, which was.ordinarlly in the late summer and
sutumn, when roads in that area were st ;neir.best.
Furthermore, settlement was COmparatively'sparse; and
sparsely settled communities usually find 1t difficult .
to conétruct and maintain aﬁequate systems of roads.
On the open pralrie, moreover, it was a simple task to
1ay.out a way to market along the section lines, It

-

- w&s only when rainy spells occurred that the»necessity
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3 for 1m0roved‘roads was felt, and then & cursory goling -
" over of ‘the worst Spots su;ficea .35 |
vIn-general, the railroad and wagon foad_complemented
‘.oné another throughout theiiatter period of the conquest’
of the frontler, ‘Thé rallroad towh was a center to which
‘the‘wagon‘roads led, drewlng toithe réilroad the commérce‘
0of a wlde surrounding area. -The sequence followed dur-
ing the extension 6f_the frontier into the Sauk Valley,
.1nto-the Long Prairie reglon, into the Shell prairies,
~and, toward the close of the céntury, into the Bemidji
area, was followed in virtually every community that
came under the dominion of the plow or the lumberman's
-ax during thé‘latter years of‘the ninetéenth century, .
The railroads, performin" the same function for the fron~
tier that the navigable rivers had performed penntrated
ever .deeper intc the 1nter10r, where they had been pre-~
cedéd by a serles of frontier trails, When the frontisr
- was sufficiéntly well developed to‘supporﬁ & railroad,
the ‘lron horse replaced -the stagécoach and freight‘ﬁagoh,
while the wagon roadé,which formérly hed carried thé»
lifg blood of the frontier commUnity, became simple.
country rqéds. They were no longer needed to supply the
communlcaiion needs of a'ffontier settlement, In'their
stead, the railroad brought in the @ail and-éupplies and
carried away the produce of the newly opened lend,

. 95. Horthern Tier (Crookston), October 25, November
15, 1879; Fisner's Landing Bulletin, iMay 22, 239, June

- 26, 1880C; ‘Fisher Bulletin, June 4, October 29, 1881,
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